These responses are qualified in their entirety by reference to the 2006 Long-Term RFP, including the Reservation of Rights set forth in the 2006 Long-Term RFP and the terms and acknowledgements set forth in the Proposal Submission Agreement. 


ENTERGY SERVICES, INC.

2006 RFP

QUESTIONS OF LPSC STAFF

LPSC-1
Entergy plans to proceed with an intermediate term RFP. Please describe those plans including timing, amount to be solicited, products, etc.

A.
ESI will issue a Draft RFP on or about September 30, 2006 that will focus on limited and intermediate-term products.  The amounts to be solicited and the specific types of products have not yet been finalized.

LPSC-2
Please indicate whether the present SSRP includes the 2006 and 2009 tranches of the EAI Wholesale Baseload (“WBL”) resource. If so, indicate the assumed Entergy Operating Company allocation for each tranche.

A.
The Strategic Supply Resource Plan (“SSRP”) is the set of processes, planning principles and planning objectives that are applied in the ongoing development of resource supply plans for the Entergy Operating Companies on behalf of their retail customers, not a specific integrated resource plan. .  However, while the long-term status of 2006 and 2009 tranches and the associated allocation of those resources are not certain at this time, for planning purposes, the Entergy System has assumed that the 2006 and 2009 tranches of the EAI WBL would be available.  The most recent allocation used for planning purposes as to these assets is 125 MW and 75 MW to EGS and EMI, respectively, for the 2006 tranche, and 83 MW and 25 MW to EGS and EMI, respectively, for the 2009 tranche, if there is one.  

LPSC-3
Please describe the expected return to service status of the Michoud power plant. If an assessment is presently taking place, when is it expected to be completed? Does the current SSRP assume the return to service of this plant?

A.
Repairs have commenced for two of the three Michoud units, with Michoud's Unit 2 expected to return to service this spring and Unit 3 expected to return to service this summer.

LPSC-4
This RFP solicits 2,000 MW of incremental capacity, whereas the SSRP identifies needs of about 5,000 MW over the next several years. Please explain why only 2,000 MW is being solicited?

A.
The Strategic Supply Resource Plan (“SSRP”) is the set of processes, planning principles and planning objectives that are applied in the ongoing development of resource supply plans for the Entergy Operating Companies on behalf of their retail customers, not a specific integrated resource plan.  Without attempting to provide an exhaustive description of the Entergy System’s planning process, in brief, the Entergy Operating Companies are not seeking to address the full capacity requirements of the Entergy System through the 2006 Long-Term RFP.  The levels of capacity solicited in this RFP reflect the following considerations:

1. This RFP is seeking only long-term resources.  The SSRP anticipates reliance on approximately 1500-3000 MW of limited-term power acquired through ongoing RFPs, including an RFP for limited-term resources to be issued later this year.
2. Additional long-term resources are anticipated to be solicited in future RFPs. 
3. There is a practical limit to the number of long-term transactions that ESI can manage simultaneously.
4. ESI anticipates that additional resource alternatives offering potentially attractive economics will become available in the coming years.  It is not in the best interests of the customers of the Entergy Operating Companies to fill the entire long-term resource needs of the Entergy System at this time. 
The evaluation also will consider the potential economic value associated with displacing units in the reserve supply role, which could result in additions in excess of reliability needs.  

LPSC-5
The CCGT study period is 20 years. Does Entergy assume that a CCGT asset acquisition has a life longer than 20 years, e.g., 30 years? If so, how is “back end” (post 20 year) useful life treated for evaluation purposes? Please explain.

A.
The Entergy System evaluation process considers the potential for a CCGT resource to provide value beyond the twenty year planning horizon and will explicitly measure such value during Stage 2 of the evaluation process through a terminal value calculation.  The value attributed to each resource beyond the twenty year planning horizon will depend on the age of the resource.

LPSC-6
With respect to debt imputation, please provide a numerical example, including an identification of the parameters to be used (e.g., risk factor, discount rate, etc.).

A.
The overarching objective in the evaluation process will be to identify resources that meet Entergy System’s supply objectives and provide power at the lowest reasonable cost consistent with the provision of reliable service.  All proposals will be evaluated on the basis of total production cost, including the recovery of and on capital.  Consistent with this principle, the implications of PPA obligations on credit quality are valid considerations in the evaluation of long-term supply resources because these consequences affect the cost of power.  Consequently, the effects of debt imputation on credit quality, and ultimately on the cost borne by customers, will be considered in the evaluation process.  These effects will be considered in Stage 2 of the evaluation, not during the Stage 1 Screening Level Analysis.  Further, resources will be evaluated with and without consideration of imputed debt.  At this time, the precise methodology to be used to consider the effects of debt imputation has not been finalized.  ESI will make available on the RFP Website a numerical example of the evaluation methodology when it has been finalized.  This evaluation process, including the numerical example, will be reviewed with the IMs and Staff.

LPSC-7
Entergy solicits both conventional PPAs and tolling agreements. Does Entergy have a preference between these products, and if so, is it reflected in the evaluation or bid ranking process?

A.
ESI prefers tolling agreements for load-following CCGT resources as compared to conventional (non-toll) PPAs, assuming the generating resource has adequate connections to receive fuel from suppliers that have common pipelines to the current Entergy System generating fleet or other flexible and reliable fuel supply arrangements.   The evaluation of tolling agreements versus conventional PPAs is a qualitative consideration.

LPSC-8
With respect to solid fuel resources, can a bidder submit a bid for a partial entitlement (ownership or PPA) to a generating unit (e.g., submit a bid for 200 MW of a 400 MW unit)?

A.
Yes, ESI will accept either a complete unit or a portion of a unit in both Solid Fuel products.  The minimum capacity for Solid Fuel proposals is 50 MW.

LPSC-9
Entergy has a preference for resources located in Amite South or WOTAB. How is this “preference” incorporated into the evaluation and bid ranking process?

A.
The primary factor in the selection of resources will be the relative economic benefits provided by each proposal.  In Stage 1 of the evaluation process, for proposals that would not otherwise have advanced based upon their economic benefit, the evaluation process will consider whether the location of each proposal in conjunction with its economic benefit, relative to the economic benefits of other proposals, warrants continued consideration of the proposal located within a preferred region.  Regional location will not exclude any proposal from consideration; rather, regional location may allow a proposal to advance in the evaluation process that would not otherwise have advanced.  In Stage 2 of the evaluation process, the PROSYM production costing simulation model will account for each proposal’s locational value as described in the response to Question 20.  Please see the response to Question 20 for additional information on how PROSYM accounts for a proposal’s locational value.

LPSC-10
With respect to the Little Gypsy repowering self build:

a)  Does this project provide any net capacity gain? If so, please specify.

b)  Does this project take over the firm transmission nights of the current Unit 3?

c)  Will this project, if undertaken, provide mitigation for the RMR generation in the Amite South or Downstream of Gypsy regions?

A.
a)  The Little Gypsy repowering self-build is not expected to result in an appreciable change in net capacity; however, this project is expected to provide a cost effective use of an existing asset, which addresses the desire to replace an existing, less efficient resource with a more efficient resource that also offers fuel diversity.

b)  The Little Gypsy repowering self-build project will comply with all requirements necessary for it to qualify as a Long-Term Network Resource under Network Integration Transmission Service.  To the extent that the transmission rights associated with the existing Little Gypsy Unit 3 can be used to accomplish this requirement, they will be used.  The transfer of transmission service associated with an existing Network Resource to the self-build project is consistent with the alternative of delisting existing Network Resources to qualify proposals as Long-Term Network Resources, which is one approach that will be considered.  The transfer of transmission service associated with an existing Network Resource will be considered for both the self-build project as well as the Candidate Proposals. 

c)  The Little Gypsy repowering self-build is expected to mitigate the Amite South import constraint.  The resource is not expected to mitigate the Downstream of Gypsy RMR requirement.  

LPSC-11
Please confirm that under the RFP structure, solid fuel and CCGT resources do not compete. Please explain the rationale for this approach.

A.
Solid Fuel and CCGT products are designed to respond to different supply objectives and, consequently, will not be compared against each other during the evaluation process.  Solid Fuel products principally seek to meet baseload requirements while increasing fuel diversity.  CCGT products principally seek to meet load-following needs.  

LPSC-12
Has ESI evaluated the need and/or advantages of quick-start peaking capacity? Please explain why such capacity is not being solicited.

A.
Yes.  Quick-start peaking capacity was included as part of the Fall 2002, Spring 2003, Fall 2003 and Fall 2004 RFPs. The evaluation of the bids received from those solicitations indicated that there was little production cost benefit associated with the addition of quick-start capacity.  ESI will continue to evaluate the need for quick-start peaking capacity and inclusion of such products in future RFPs.  

LPSC-13
In the “best and finals” round, can a bidder change the product definition e.g., change a PPA bid to an asset sale bid? Please explain.

A.
The RFP does not contemplate a change in the product definition by a Bidder after a proposal has been submitted.  However, if there are compelling circumstances that cause a Bidder to change a PPA proposal to an asset sale, and the economics of the asset sale are comparable to those of the PPA, ESI reserves the option to consider the revised proposal.  Any such consideration would be done in consultation with the Independent Monitors and, to the extent that the proposal affected Entergy Gulf States, Inc. or Entergy Louisiana, LLC, also with the LPSC Staff.

LPSC-14
Appendix E-1 suggests that solid fuel capacity bids may be estimates that are subject to change as the project becomes better defined. Please reconcile this with the statements in the RFP that in the “best and finals” process a bidder may not increase the bid price. Please clarify Entergy’s intent with regard to “fixed price” bids.

A.
ESI is in the process of finalizing the ‘best and finals’ process and will provide an update in a supplemental response.  
LPSC-15
Will ESI respond to the written comments of LPSC Staff and other stakeholders?

A.
Currently, ESI anticipates that it will provide a response to written comments received from the LPSC Staff and other stakeholders; however, such responses may not be completed prior to issuing the Final RFP.  ESI will undertake to submit such responses as soon as practicable, but ESI’s primary focus will be on preparing the Final RFP for publication on or about April 17, 2006.

LPSC-16
Are there any restrictions imposed by Entergy in this RFP regarding bankrupt entities submitting bids? For example, would the bidder be required to demonstrate bankruptcy court approval for the bid submitted?

A.
Entergy Services, Inc. is not requiring that Bidders that currently are in bankruptcy, or that wish to submit proposals for resources that are owned by entities owned or controlled by the Bidder (i.e., affiliate companies) that currently are in bankruptcy, have obtained approval from the applicable Bankruptcy Court to proceed with a Definitive Agreement prior to submitting a proposal in response to the 2006 Long-Term RFP.  However, if such a proposal is selected for negotiation of a Definitive Agreement in the 2006 Long-Term RFP, then the Bidder will be expected to obtain all required approvals from the Bankruptcy Court within a commercially reasonable time frame, with the particular time frame to be negotiated with the Bidder after the proposal has been selected. 

LPSC-17
With regard to the $2 million collateral for execution of an LOI:

a)  Has Entergy previously imposed such a requirement as part of past RFPs?

b)  Why does ESI believe this feature is needed at this time?

c)  In the event of default on an LOI by a counter party, what is the retail rate treatment of the forfeited collateral?

A.
a)  ESI has not previously had this requirement.


b)  ESI will require the $2 million Letter of Credit upon the execution of an LOI to provide ESI assurance that the selected counterparty will continue to honor the selected proposal and work in good faith to negotiate a Definitive Agreement.

c)  If Entergy Gulf States, Inc. or Entergy Louisiana, LLC is the counterparty to an LOI that is the subject of a default, the anticipated retail rate treatment of forfeited collateral will be that the amount forfeited will be considered a part of any test year revenue requirement that is to be considered in the setting of the rates of Entergy Gulf States, Inc. and/or Entergy Louisiana, LLC during the year in which the collateral is forfeited.  If Entergy Services, Inc. is the counterparty to the LOI, it is anticipated that the receipt of the forfeited collateral by ESI would be considered in determining the total cost to be allocated to EGS and ELL by ESI for the time period in question.  By providing the anticipated ratemaking treatment of any forfeited collateral, EGS and ELL do not waive, and expressly reserve, the right to request whatever treatment of these funds that they deem appropriate in the context of regulatory proceedings.  The circumstance in the question is hypothetical and presents issues that the Companies have not had an opportunity to consider fully at this time.  

LPSC-18
Please describe the anticipated process for consultation with LPSC Staff concerning allocations to the various Entergy Operating Companies of the capacity acquired through the RFP. When would such consultation take place?

A.
The allocation to the four Operating Companies (ENO is not participating in this RFP) will be determined based on the types of products acquired and the needs of the Operating Companies.  The allocation decisions will be made by the Operating Committee prior to commencement of the Delivery Term.  ESI will keep the Staff apprised of the progress regarding allocation decisions.  The allocation decision is not announced, but rather included in the filings to the appropriate regulatory bodies.  
LPSC-19
Has the ProSym model been benchmarked or otherwise validated to ensure that it can reasonably accurately simulate actual System operations? Please describe.

A.
Yes.  The PROSYM model is used regularly for operational planning and decision making, and it is also used in the evaluation process of short-term and longer-term RFPs for resource procurement.  PROSYM is used to prepare daily fuel and purchased power forecasts for the System’s fuel and power buyers, and is used to evaluate weekly and monthly RFPs for power purchases.  The PROSYM model is also used to evaluate monthly and seasonal energy plans and to assess the effects of changes in unit operational characteristics.

LPSC-20
Please describe how the ProSym model accounts for the locational value of capacity resources into the RFP.

A.
PROSYM accounts for the locational value of capacity resources in several different ways.  Within the PROSYM model construct, the Entergy System is defined as four distinct planning regions.  These planning regions represent the loads and resources located within particular regions of the System (see Section 1.8 of the draft 2006 Long-Term RFP).  The relative supply /demand balance within a planning region contributes to the locational value of a resource within the region.  If the planning region has a relative shortage of supply, the locational value of additional supply within the region would be reflected in the production cost analysis.  Power flow limits into and out of these planning regions are defined within the model construct to reflect the constraints to moving power between planning regions.  The locational value of generating resources within particular areas will be reflected in the economic dispatch of these units to serve the loads within and beyond the particular planning region.  The locational value of generating resources within a planning region is also represented by a dispatch fuel cost multiplier that serves as a proxy for transmission losses and reflects the cost of moving power from the generator to the load. Dispatch fuel cost multipliers are established for each planning region based on the average of Entergy System generating units within the planning region.

LPSC-21
Please provide for calendar 2005 MWH generation for each Entergy natural gas/oil-generating unit. For purposes of this question please include all 2005 Perryville and Attala generation regardless of whether it was through a PPA or owned asset. That is, provide the full 2005 calendar year net generation from the Perryville plant (by unit) and the Attala plant.

A.
Because the requested information is confidential and proprietary, Entergy Services, Inc. is not willing to provide it in the question and answer process of the 2006 Long-Term RFP.  The disclosure of this information to market participants would expose the Entergy Operating Companies, and their customers, to a risk of harm in the form of higher prices that would be able to be charged if market participants were to know the specific operational output, by unit, of every generating unit on the Entergy System.  In addition, ESI does not believe that such information would be needed to help a Bidder determine whether to submit a proposal in response to the 2006 Long-Term RFP.  ESI also notes that this information recently was provided to the Staff on a highly sensitive and confidential basis in response to a data request submitted by the Staff in LPSC Docket No. U-28858.

LPSC-22
With regard to question (21), please provide the fuel expense cost per MWH for each Entergy gas/oil generating unit during calendar 2005. (Please include the full year cost for the Perryville units and Attala unit.)

A.
Because the requested information is confidential and proprietary, Entergy Services, Inc. is not willing to provide it in the question and answer process of the 2006 Long-Term RFP.  The disclosure of this information to market participants would expose the Entergy Operating Companies, and their customers, to a risk of harm in the form of higher prices that would be able to be charged if market participants were to know the specific fuel cost, by unit, of every generating unit on the Entergy System.  In addition, ESI does not believe that such information would be needed to help a Bidder determine whether to submit a proposal in response to the 2006 Long-Term RFP.

LPSC-23
Please provide for calendar 2005 the average cost per MMBtu that the Entergy System incurred for:

a)  natural gas; and

b)  oil.

A.
a) $8.62/ MMBtu

b) $6.00/ MMBtu

LPSC-24
Please provide a detailed description concerning how the bid evaluation methodology will account for the RMR mitigation benefits that a bid (PPA or asset sale) could provide the Entergy System. Please include any consideration that would be given to transmission upgrades that might accompany the bid resource to enhance RMR mitigation benefits.
A.
As discussed in Appendix E-2 to the RFP, in the Initial Transmission Analysis, the TAG will evaluate proposals submitted in response to the RFP to determine if the proposed resource could potentially relieve a reliability must run (“RMR”) constraint by providing a lower cost generation alternative.  The potential RMR mitigation benefits will be accounted for through the following steps:

1.  Prior to receiving the proposals, TAG will identify those electrical constraints that cause generating units to be designated as RMR units.

2.  Determine whether the proposed resource qualifies as a potential replacement candidate for an RMR unit based on the location of the proposed resource relative to the constraint.

3.  Determine the potential benefit associated with the relief of the RMR constraint by comparing the results of system production cost simulations with the RMR unit that would be “replaced” and with the proposed resource in lieu of that RMR unit.  

4.  Reduce the proposal’s cost to reflect the potential production cost benefits associated with relief of the RMR constraint and consider the resulting effect on the proposal’s relative cost ranking.  

The total benefit of the constraint mitigation attributed to any proposed resource will not exceed the lowest cost potential supply alternative, determined by TAG, that provides comparable relief of the RMR constraint up to the amount of the proposed resource.  

During this stage of the evaluation, the analysis will not consider whether the proposal, in conjunction with potential transmission upgrades, might provide greater production cost benefits through relieving RMR constraints. 
During latter phases of the economic evaluation, when more definitive information regarding required transmission upgrades and their corresponding effects are available, production cost simulations will be used to assess each proposal’s effect on total system production cost.  These production cost simulations will consider the potential benefits associated with RMR mitigation, as well as other potential benefits, such as improved import capacity into a constrained region, which may be provided by the proposal in conjunction with any transmission upgrades required for that proposal. 
Addendum Response to LPSC-24

The preliminary RMR evaluation methodology outlined in the original response to LPSC-24 has been revised and refined, and the revised methodology will be set forth in the Final RFP.  See also ESI’s response to Staff Comment 4.  

LPSC-25
Please provide for calendar 2005, the MWH breakdown for the Entergy System:

a. Nuclear generation;
b. Coal-fired generation;
c. Oil-gas generation;
d. Purchase power;
e. Hydro generation;
f. Total system net power supply.
A.
Please note that the numbers provided below differ from those provided in Appendix H to the Draft RFP to reflect certain end of year accounting adjustments and the output from the generation owned by Entergy Operating Companies.  In Appendix H to the Draft RFP, some of the data presented reflected the entire plant output for units that are co-owned by the Operating Companies and third parties. The Final RFP will reflect the data below, which includes only the output share of co-owned generating units associated with the portion of the units owned by the Entergy Operating Companies.
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NUCLEAR

37,059            41,038            40,917            40,628            41,710            38,432            

COAL

14,799            14,586            13,743            14,057            15,359            13,502            

GAS/OIL

43,073            38,873            35,195            22,797            22,619            23,049            

PURCHASED POWER

24,188            19,466            27,318            37,687            37,967            39,718            

HYDRO

133                 154                 164                 115                 151                 97                   

TOTAL

119,252          114,117          117,337          115,284          117,806          114,799          


LPSC-26
With regard to 2005 System purchased power, please provide the following MWH breakdown:

a. Affiliate purchases (i.e., do not include MSS-3 or MSS-4 transfers among the operating companies);
b. Non affiliate purchase (excluding QF puts); and
c. QF puts.
A.
a.  1,795,993
b.  28,263,320
c.  9,658,369
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